Request for Proposal (RFP) # 071I9200125
Addendum Number 2 - Posted 4/13/09

RFP Response Due Date:  May 21, 2009 by 3:00pm (EST)
Question and Answers:  Comprehensive Health Care Program

Introduction:

This addendum includes responses to questions received by DMB as of 3/30/2009.  Subsequent addendums will address questions regarding capitation payment rates received by 3:00pm (EST) on 5/6/09.

The following conventions were used in responding to questions proposed by potential Bidders responding to RFP # 071I9200125:
· Questions regarding rates were not addressed; these questions should be re-submitted by 3:00pm (EST) on 5/6/09, if not addressed at the Bidder’s Conference;
· Like questions were summarized or combined to form a single question;

· Questions were included under the most appropriate section heading as contained in the RFP and its attachments;

· “What if” questions were not responded to or were revised to ask a specific question;

· Questions that ask for an evaluation or comments on specific proposals were not responded to.  This is a function of the evaluation process;

· Proper names of potential Bidders were not included in questions or responses;

· Questions that asked for additional information which is generally available were not responded to;

· Terminology that is general usage within the health care or managed care community were not defined as Bidders are expected to be, or to become familiar with these terms; 

· Questions that would require the development of a portion of the required response were not answered; and

· The State did not generally respond to “why” questions.  The purpose of the RFP has been described in the RFP document. 

The questions and responses are divided into three sections:

Section I:  Bidder’s Conference and Submission Format
Section II:  Topic Categories in Alphabetical Order

Section III:  Appendices

Section I:  Bidder’s Conference and Submission Format

Bidder’s Conference/Proposal Process
1. Will Bidders have the option to conference call into the Pre-Bid Meeting/Site Visit on May 5, 2009?

 No.
2. Please confirm that the reference to a Pre-Bid Meeting/Site Visit on May 5 only applies to the Bidder’s conference and that there are no required or voluntary site visits prior to any required readiness reviews before contract start date. 

Correct.  The State will not be conducting any site visits prior to the bid award.  The State reserves the right to conduct readiness reviews prior to the contract start date.

3. Are there any limits on the number of attendants allowed at the Pre-Bid Meeting?

No.
4. Section 3.013 does not allow reasonable time for submittal of follow up questions given the RFP stated guidelines that verbal responses given at Bidders meeting cannot be relied upon by Bidders until published in writing by DMB and distributed to all Bidders.  Please expand the time for follow up questions to at least May 12.

If the written responses to the Bidders Pre-Bid Meeting questions are unclear Bidders may submit clarification questions to the State.

5. Will the Department share information about the proposed members of the JEC?

This information is not relevant in order for a Bidder to provide a responsive proposal.  

Proposal Format/Submission Requirements
6. Does the RFP Checklist for Bidder Proposal Contents and Responsiveness have to be completed and submitted with a Bidder’s response?

No.

7. The RFP states that “proposals must include detailed responses to all tasks as requested in Article 1” and provide all information requested in Article 5.” Please confirm that there are no tasks in Article 1 that Bidders must respond to (outside of the information requested in Article 5).
No response is expected in Article 1.

8. If the State does want the health plans to submit detailed responses to all sections in Article 1, where in the proposal response format should we include this information?

No response is expected in Article 1.

9. In order to respond to Article 1 and 2, is it sufficient to sign the Attestation #1 in Appendix 6?

No response is expected in Articles 1 and 2.  Signing Attestation # 1 in Appendix 6 is sufficient.
10. Please clarify how you wish vendors to respond to Article 1 or if the entire Article 1 section is for reference only.   There are only a few tasks embedded within Article 1 Scope for Work and Deliverables, and we can clearly respond to those.  However, do you expect vendors to respond with a statement either affirmative or negative below each description contained in 1.020 and throughout Article 1?  Or is this to be used as reference only, as indicated in Articles 3, 4, and 5?

Articles 1 and 2 contain the contractual requirements; no response in these Articles is expected.  Article 3 describes how the State will evaluate Bidders and contains specific directions for submission of the proposal.  Article 5 details the information that must be submitted pursuant to Article 3 so that the State may evaluate the bid.  Article 4 must be completed and submitted electronically only as directed on the new bid4michigan Web site (www.bid4michigan.gov).

11. Based on the updatable versions of the articles we are assuming that these articles require a response and that all other sections require a response only in the event the plan is unable to meet the requirement or perform the work/task as outlined in the RFP.  Is this correct?

No.  Article 3 describes the information the State needs to evaluate the Bidders’ proposal.  Article 5 delineates the information that the Bidder must submit in order for the State to evaluate the bid proposal.  The Bidder must supply ALL information required by Article 5.  Article 4 must be completed and submitted electronically only as directed on the new bid4michigan Web site.
12. There appear to be sections missing from the list of required proposal sections.  Specifically, in Article 5 there is Section 5.021 – Accreditation and Section 5.027 – Value Added Services.  However, it is not clear where these would fall in the required RFP Sections in the bulleted list under 3.055.  Where does the State want us to include our responses to these topics? 

“Accreditation” and “Value Added” were inadvertently left off the list of topics/sections in the bulleted list in Section 3.055.  Additionally, Article 4 is to be submitted electronically only as directed on the new bid4michigan Web site.  Below is an updated list of the headings/section to be included in the bid proposal:
· Introduction

· Bidder’s Liability Insurance (Statement that a Certificate of Insurance will be provided as a condition of award).
· Accreditation
· Organizational Structure (include organizational chart and Appendices 8 and 9 under this heading)

· Notarized Disclosure Statements

· Administrative Personnel (include position descriptions and resumes under this heading)

· Prior Experience/Past Performance

· Disclosure of Litigation

· Contract Performance 

· Certificate of Authority 

· Financial Statements

· Provider Network (include Appendix 5 under this heading)

· Public and Community Providers (include Appendix 7 under this heading)
· Claims Processing 

· Member Handbook 

· Grievance and Appeal Policy

· Value Added Criteria
· Attestations (include Appendix 6 under this heading)

13. Is proof of insurance due with the RFP response or as part of the final contract execution? If actual proof of insurance is required to be provided with the bid, must Bidders show proof of all insurance requirements set forth in Sections 2.130 through 2.133? Or, is a statement specifying that Certificates of Insurance will be provided as a condition to award sufficient (as indicated in the RFP checklist)? If a statement is sufficient, must the statement meet any special format (e.g., be signed by CEO, etc).

Bidders must provide a statement that Certificate of Liability Insurance documents will be provided as a condition of award.  No specific statement format is required. 

14. The RFP states that Bidder must furnish to DMB Purchasing Operations Certificates of Insurance verifying insurance coverage or providing satisfactory evidence of self-insurance as required in this section.  The Certificate of Insurance must include the Contract of Purchase Order Number to ensure correct filing.  Is the Contract or Purchase Order Number that must be included on the Certificate of Insurance the RFP Number identified in the RFP (071I9200125)? Are there any additional requirements regarding Additional Insured? What is the exact wording that should be listed in the additional insured area to cover the State of Michigan its departments etc?  Does the address need to be included and, if so, which address?

The Contract number that needs to be included on the Certificate of Liability Insurance will be provided after award recommendations have been made and contracts have been issued to the winning Bidders for review and signature.  The exact wording that should be listed in the additional insured area is:  The State of Michigan, its departments, divisions, agencies, offices, commissions, officers, employees and agents.  The certificate holder should be listed as:  State of Michigan, Department of Management & Budget, Purchasing Operations, 530 West Allegan Street, P.O. Box 30026, Lansing, MI 48909.

15. Would a Bidder include the current contract number on the insurance accord forms with an end date of 09-30-09 and the new contract number with a begin date of 10-1-09?

Bidders must provide a statement that Certificate of Liability Insurance documents will be provided as a condition of award.  After recommendation of award and prior to contract implementation the new insurance accord form must be submitted to the State with the new contract number shown. 

16. Does the Bidder need to include the Insurance Accord pages of sub-contractors’ insurance policies with the bid response?

No.  Bidders must provide a statement that Certificate of Liability Insurance documents will be provided as a condition of award. 

17. Section 3.055 indicates that Bidder’s Liability Insurance should be one of the Header Sections in the proposal.  The RFP checklist indicates to include a statement that a Certificate of Insurance will be provided as a condition of award.  Are insurance certificates required to be submitted with the RFP response, or after award?
Certificate of Liability Insurance documents must be submitted after award.  Bidders must provide a statement that Certificate of Liability Insurance documents will be provided as a condition of award. 

18. Article 4, Certifications and Representations is included in the RFP for submission. However, on the new bid4michigan Web site it tells you that this Article must be completed prior to submitting a response to the RFP. Health plans are being told by DMS that they must complete Article 4 electronically. Are health plans to submit this article electronically prior to submitting the RFP in addition to the hardcopy response or just electronically? 

Please only submit Article 4 electronically at the bid4michigan Web site.
19. Where does the State require information for Article 5 to be placed within the structure of the RFP?  Is Article 3 a reference section?
Section 3.055 directs Bidders to format the proposal to follow exactly the topics/sections listed in the bulleted list.  The table of contents should include all of those topics/sections in that precise order as corrected in question # 12.  Sections must be clearly identified with the headings specified in Section 3.055, as corrected in question # 12. All information requested in Article 5 should be provided under the appropriate heading listed in 3.055, as corrected in question # 12.  

20. Step 6 of Article 3 asks for Descriptions.  Are these Descriptions to be placed within Article 3 and following Article 2 within the binder of the RFP - OR with the requested information for Article 5?

Descriptions included in the proposal pursuant to Step 6 of Article 3 should be placed at the end of the proposal in the section entitled “Value-Added Criteria.”
21. Are Bidders allowed to add sections to the RFP, in addition to those listed in Article 3, Section 3.055 on Page 96 in order to accommodate additional documentation or would that be grounds for disqualification the proposal as non-responsive?

Bidders may utilize sub-tabs within the section headings listed in Section 3.055, as corrected in question # 12, to provide documentation related to bid requirements.

22. If narrative is not specifically requested for a required section (e.g., Company Information/Organizational Structure—Section 5.011), can Bidders provide brief introductory narrative to that section of their proposal?

Yes.
23. The RFP requires the health plans to indicate how long the proposal remains valid.  Under which heading (as listed on page 96, 3.055 Proposal Format) should this statement appear?

Please provide this information on a separate sheet at the front of the bid proposal in the Introduction Section.

24. Anything requiring a signature can only be incorporated into an electronic submission in PDF format.  Additionally, NAIC statements/RBC reports, COA, accreditation certificates & letters, and insurance certificates are also only available in PDF format.   We are seeking confirmation that you want these documents excluded from the electronic submission since they are not in a Microsoft Office desktop tool.
If documents are only available electronically in a PDF format, please include the PDF format in the electronic submission.  All documents available in a Microsoft Office compatible format should be provided in that format (e.g. Word and Excel).
25. Does the CD-Rom have to be organized like the binder?

Yes, to the extent possible.

26. To assure that no conversion is required, please identify the versions of Microsoft Office that are acceptable for bid submissions. 

To avoid any need for conversion, word documents should be saved in Word 2002 and Excel documents should be saved in Excel 97.

27. Where should Article 4 – Certifications and Representations be placed in the bid proposal? 
Section 3.055 directs Bidders to format the proposal to follow exactly the topics/sections listed in the bulleted list, as corrected in question # 12.  The table of contents should include all of those topics/sections in that precise order.  Sections must be clearly identified with the headings specified. Article 4 should be placed after the proposal section containing the “Attestations.” 
28. Please confirm that the HEDIS 2009 scores do not need to be submitted with the proposal on May 21, 2009 and that these are to be submitted to MDCH by June 15, 2009, separate from the RFP response.

Correct.  Bidders who have HEDIS 2009 scores must submit the HEDIS® IDSS and signed and dated Attestation of Accuracy and Public Reporting Authorization (Medicaid letter from NCQA) to MDCH by 5:00 p.m. on 6/15/09.

29. Article 3, Section 3.054 Double Sided on Recycled Paper. The RFP specifies in the earlier part of the paragraph that "when possible, should use recycled paper for all printed and photocopied documents related to the submission of their bid" but later states "must, whenever practicable, use both sides of the paper and ensure that the cover page of each document bears an imprint identifying it as recycled paper." Is the requirement that the hardcopy document be on recycled paper? Is the paper required to have the recycled symbol on it?  If an entire proposal is printed on recycled paper, would it be sufficient to include the imprint on the first page of the proposal only?

When possible and practical, the proposal should be double-sided on recycled paper.  The recycled paper with a recycle symbol should be used if available. 

30. The RFP format is in Arial 10 font.  Are bid responses to use the same format or should we use Times New Roman 12 font? Is there any font, spacing or other requirements that apply to Bidders’ proposals?

For those responses in which the Bidder is asked to provide a narrative description, Bidders must limit their response to one page of single-spaced, Arial 11-point font.  For all sections of the bid, only 11-pont font is acceptable.

31. In the RFP Checklist there is a reference to Article 1 and Attachment A.  The RFP does not have an Attachment A.  Are you referring to Appendix 6?

Yes.
Section II:  Topic Categories in Alphabetical Order

Access Standards

32. Can Contractor criteria and process for monitoring waiting times to get appointments and waiting times in provider offices utilize a sampling methodology or be based on a member feedback or inquiry process? 

All of these methods are acceptable methods for monitoring waiting times.
Accreditation
33. Section 3.022, Step 2 of the RFP states that Bidders who held a contract with the State of Michigan on or after September 30, 2008, must hold accreditation as a managed care organization for their Medicaid product line by NCQA or URAC.  Please specify the date by which accreditation needs to be in place in order for a Bidder to meet the minimum qualifications.

Accreditation must be in place at the time of bid proposal submission which is due on 5/21/2009.

Claims
34. Regarding Section 5.024, what is the expected document to include in the bid documents to show the recent 12 months of monthly claims reports for a Bidder who is a current contracted Health Plan?

No documentation is required for currently contracted health plans.

35. In the list of bullet points Article 3, Section 3.055 is one called “Claims Processing” but it does not match with any of the section descriptions in Article 5.  Is this the section where we should include our response to Article 5, Section 5.024 – Payment to Providers? Does claims processing relate to 5.024 “Payment to Providers”?

Yes.

Community Rehabilitation

36. Does the State maintain a list of recognized community rehabilitation organizations?  If so, could the Bidders please have access to that list?

The State does not maintain a list of recognized community rehabilitation organizations.  Please refer to Section 4.043 for a definition of community rehabilitation organization.

Computer Crimes
37. Please clarify Computer Crimes – Bidders may maintain an internet policy that covers computer related fraud etc and for computer crimes that is more robust than the Fidelity would be – would such a policy suffice in adjunct to the employee Fidelity policy?

Yes.

Confidential Information

38. The last sentence of 2.102 requires that the "Contractor must certify to the State that Contractor has destroyed all State Confidential Information."  Can copies be retained to the extent necessary for audit, compliance, litigation and/or accounting purposes?

From your question, it is unclear what Confidential Information you might need for future audit, compliance, litigation, and/or accounting purposes.  If such an event occurs, you would be expected to contact the State to request permission to retain the Confidential Information.  If the State grants permission for the Contractor to retain the Confidential Information for such purposes, the Contractor must certify it has destroyed the records promptly after the need for the records expires.  

Contractor On-Site Review

39. Please define frequency, duration at Contractor location and lead time provided to Contractor for performance of Contractor on-site reviews.

On-site reviews are conducted at least annually but may be more frequent if required to resolve issues with contract compliance.  The State typically spends one to two days at the Contractor location and provides the Contractor notice of the upcoming site visit approximately 3 months before the on-site visit date. 

Covered Services

40. Please explain which section in the RFP the requirement to cover the standardized developmental screen is located. There is no reference to this requirement in Covered Services on page 16. 

Developmental screening is covered as part of EPSDT services which are listed as covered services  in Section 1.022E.

41. Detoxification is listed as not a Contractor requirement under Substance abuse services and there is no reference to detoxification in Covered services on Page 16.  Please clarify this related to the definitions and clarifications being prepared by the Mental Health Advisory Committee for medical detoxification which the current contracted Health Plans are advised is a health plan responsibility. 

 Inpatient hospital detoxification is covered by fee-for-service Medicaid.

42. Contractors must provide education for enrollees with, or at risk for, a specific disability or illness. Does the   State specify the specific disabilities or illnesses, or does the Contractor identify them?

The State may direct the Contractor to provide education for enrollees with, or at risk for, a specific disability or illness.  The Contractor is also required to develop methods for determining disabilities or illnesses relevant to the Contractor’s population.

43. If CAHCPs do not have a contractual relationship with the Contractor, the Contractor is responsible for payment to the CAHCP at Medicaid FFS rates in effect on the date of service. Will the State assume responsibility for notifying the MHPs of the eligible CAHCPs?
Yes.
44. Is psychiatric home health care covered and if so, is it the responsibility of the Health plan or CMH/PIHPs?

Psychiatric home health care is not covered under this Contract.

45. Please define responsibility for coverage for Electro Convulsive Therapy (ECT) and any related anesthesia services related to this treatment. Are these services considered the responsibility of the local CMH and PIHP providers? 

Contractors are not responsible for Electro Convulsive Therapy treatments nor anesthesia services utilized as part of Electro Convulsive Therapy treatments.

46. Once a health plan delivers 20 visit OP mental health benefits, does a health plan have further covered service obligation related to the individual member’s psychiatric or behavioral issues? 

The Contractor is not responsible for any further outpatient or inpatient mental health services during that 12-month period. However, the Contractor must continue to coordinate the care of the member, including the coordination of mental and physical health services.

47. Do confidential services required to be provided to minors require parental notice or consent prior to or after delivery, i.e., family planning services? If there is a notice requirement, are there any exceptions to the notification requirement? 

Contractors are required to follow Federal law and Medicaid policy with respect to the provision of confidential services to minors.

48. Please define if the health plan is responsible for any dental services not directly related to a medical condition and define if dental services are billed utilizing HCFA 1500 standard forms or other billing process. 

Dental services are not a covered benefit under this Contract except as defined in 1.022(E)(1).

49. Please define communicable diseases at national standard coding level (ICD – 9 or equivalent) or specific definition listing to support open access by enrollees without prior authorization. 

As stated in 1.022(F)(12) “for purposes of this Section, communicable diseases are HIV/AIDS, STDs, tuberculosis, and vaccine-preventable communicable diseases.”  The national codes are available through public documents.

50. Is the Contractor responsible for all donor costs related to organ acquisition or only a limited component? Please define donor cost responsibility. 

The Contractor is responsible for all costs related to covered transplantation services including donor costs.

51. Please confirm that transportation to MIHP providers is an excluded benefit from this Contract.

Transportation to MIHP providers for appointments limited solely to MIHP services is an excluded benefit under this Contract.  

Credentialing

52. Article 1.022. Section V (1) Credentialing (e) & (f) states that health plans must have policies and procedures to cover a review of the provider's employees for debar and criminal convictions. Health plans would be able to educate providers, but unsure as to how the plans would have any knowledge or controls of the employees in a provider's particular office. Are the health plans truly required to do this? 

Yes. In the Audit Report of 7/30/08, The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services directed the State to require MHPs to “gather information about managing employees as part of the provider enrollment and credentialing process so that MHPs can check these individuals for excluded status.”  

53. The RFP states that the Bidder must attest that the Bidder’s provider credentialing and re-credentialing policies cover review of the provider’s record for fraud, abuse, and waste at the time of credentialing and re-credentialing.  What is the process the Bidder should follow to meet this criterion?

The Bidder’s provider credentialing and re-credentialing policies must include a provision that states that the Contractor reviews the provider’s record for fraud, abuse, and waste at the time of credentialing and re-credentialing.

Creditable Coverage
54. Are health plans required to distribute notices of creditable coverage to members who terminate with the plan?  If yes, does this include notice of creditable coverage for Medicare part D? 

Health plans are required to distribute notices of creditable coverage to members who terminate with the plan.  This notice does not include Medicare Part D.

Definitions

55. Please provide a definition of "medical home".

 The Patient Centered Medical Home is a health care setting that facilitates partnerships between individual patients, and their personal physicians, and when appropriate, the patient’s family. Care is facilitated by registries, information technology, health information exchange and other means to assure that patients get the indicated care when and where they need and want it in a culturally and linguistically appropriate manner.

56. Please provide the Medicaid definition of Nursing facility (or provide Medicaid Provider manual reference definition) as related to restorative or rehabilitative services referenced under Covered Services.  

  Medicaid policy regarding nursing facilities is located in the Nursing Facility Chapter in the Medicaid Policy Manual which can be found on the MDCH Web site at http://www.mdch.state.mi.us/dch-medicaid/manuals/MedicaidProviderManual.pdf. 
57. Please add a MDCH definition of mediation for the in network provider appeals process versus the Hospital Access Agreement standard for rapid review. Also, please add a MDCH definition of rapid resolution.

With regard to the provider appeal process, the term “mediation” has the standard meaning.  Rapid  review and rapid dispute resolution are defined in the Hospital Access Agreement.

Energy Efficiency

58. Please provide examples of how the Energy Efficiency/Environmental Purchasing Policy identified in Section 3.045 might apply to MHPs. In response to Section 3.045, which is identified as being a consideration for award, may Bidders submit an outline for Environmental Purchasing and Compliance?  What are the other priority factors?  Is there an identified point spread that would determine when bids are “comparable”?

Bidders may submit an outline for Environmental Purchasing and Compliance.  Please reference Section 3.022 for the Evaluation Criteria that will be utilized for this RFP.

Enrollment/Disenrollment

59. How is Contractor supposed to be aware of “enrollment error” for out of area enrollment to be able to request disenrollment? What is Contractor obligated to notify MDCH of within 15 days of enrollment effective date? 

Contractors are required to promptly process all enrollment files sent by MDCH.  Contractors must notify MDCH of any errors in enrollment immediately.

60. Please define Medicaid Health Plan Open Enrollment periods planned or considered for fall 2009 and calendar year 2010. 

Open enrollment is held annually in May.

61. Please provide file specifications for administrative or other disenrollment requests. Please define frequency with which Contractor can request disenrollments, time period in which State will respond to disenrollment requests and method of confirmation of response back to Contractor.  Do enrollment updates and requested changes by plan require automated or manual process?

See section 1.022(B) for description of disenrollment process.  Frequency of requests and responses is dependent upon type and nature of request.  Disenrollments involve both automated and manual processes.

62. In 2008, MDCH was prepared to enroll certain segments of the foster care population into managed care plans.  This initiative was postponed due to the continued implementation of CHAMPS/BRIDGES systems.  Will the Department include this population in the 2010 Contract?

MDCH has not yet set a date for implementation of the enrollment of foster care children into the health plans.

63. Please provide clarification around newborn enrollment. What does it mean that a newborn may be eligible for one year or longer? 

Typically, newborns are eligible for Medicaid for the first year of life.  However, the Department of Human Services also utilizes other factors which may cause the newborn’s eligibility to end.

64. Please clarify the timeframes around newborn enrollment. In cases of late notification of newborn enrollment, MDCH states that enrollment will be for the first month of service only, retroactively. Please clarify that enrollment would also be prospective from that date forward. Also, MDCH states they will not accept requests for newborn enrollment from the Contractor after six months from the date of birth. What if the Contractor is notified of the birth at, for example, seven months from the date of the birth (e.g., out-of-state hospital births)? Is any retroactive coverage available?

MDCH expects Contractors to track the health and care of pregnant women enrolled in the Contractor’s health plan; therefore, the Contractor should be aware of birth within the time line required to report the birth to MDCH.

65. Please provide additional clarification on Special Disenrollments. Does MDCH have specific criteria for “other actions inconsistent with plan membership”? Examples are given, e.g., repeated use of non-Contractor providers without referral or when in network providers are available. Does MDCH have criteria or definition for “repeated use”? Also, with respect to “discharge from multiple practices,” what are the MDCH criteria or definition of “multiple practices”? What would MDCH require when no practice in a county will accept the member as a patient?

Special disenrollments are determined on a case-by-case basis.  MDCH works with the health plans to assist them with determining when special disenrollment requests are appropriate.

Evaluation

66. Please clarify due date for the HMO to hold Certificate of Authority to Operate as HMO in the State of Michigan. This section indicates May 27, 2009 and Page 7 Section 1.011 (2) indicates May 15, 2009. 

Bidders must hold a Certificate of Authority to Operate as an HMO in the State of Michigan by May 15, 2009.

67. Does providing health plan coverage to State of Michigan employees count as a contract per 5.014 requiring listing of contracts related to past performance?

Section 5.014 requires the Bidder to list any contracts, including the contract number, which you have had with the State in the last three years.  Therefore, if the Bidder has a contract to provide health plan coverage to State of Michigan employees, then this contract should be listed.

68. Does MDCH expect MHPs to be CHAMPS certified prior to the RFP response being filed or as a condition of post-contract award readiness review?

CHAMPS will not be in production at the time of bid submission.  Therefore, the State will work with successful Bidders to verify that the Contractors meet all requirements before the date that CHAMPS is implemented into production.

69. Please confirm that the LDL Screening measure refers to Comprehensive Diabetes Care, not Cardiovascular Care.

The State will utilize LDL Screening for Comprehensive Diabetes Care.

70. The RFP states that Bidders must include in the response a statement whether it is licensed or registered to operate in the State of Michigan.  Michigan Health Maintenance Organizations are certified by the Office of Financial and Insurance Regulation.  Will MDCH accept this certification as evidence that it is licensed or registered to operate in the State of Michigan?

Yes.  The Bidder must submit a copy of the Certificate of Authority from OFIR with the bid proposal under the heading “Certificate of Authority.” 

71. Does the assignment of the automatic four points apply only to Plans that may have HEDIS rates, but not from Michigan, or could even non-accredited Plans get the automatic points even if they have never done HEDIS anywhere?

All Bidders without 2008 Michigan Medicaid HEDIS rates will receive four points for the HEDIS component of the evaluation.

72. What level of specificity (e.g. tenths) with/without rounding will be used to evaluate HEDIS scores/percentiles?

Rates will be rounded to one decimal place.  Rates of nn.n5 will be rounded to nn.n+1 and rates of nn.n49 will be rounded to nn.n.  For example, 89.1567 will be rounded to 89.2 and 89.14999 will be rounded to 89.1.

73. Would MDCH be willing to amend its scoring methodology for Quality to recognize improvements from HEDIS 2008 scores?

No.
74. Article 3, Section 3.022, Step 5, #2, Page 91.  The RFP states that points will be assigned based on the NCQA 2008 percentiles.  Please confirm that these are the NCQA 2008 Medicaid percentiles.

Yes.

75. It is representative of the MDCH emphasis on QI and HEDIS scores for current health plans in the awarding points for accreditation (page 85 Step 2) and points for HEDIS measures (page 91, Category 4).  Is it an example of this emphasis to allow non-accredited plans to bid and to give a plan four points for HEDIS measures even if there is no HEDIS report submitted?

If a Bidder did not hold a contract with the State as of September 30, 2008, the Bidder is not held to the accreditation standard listed in 3.022, Step 2.  Plans with no Michigan Medicaid HEDIS scores will be given four points for each criterion.

76. Article 3.022. Step 5 (2) Quality, there are five HEDIS measures identified. Are these the only measures that will be evaluated for plans fitting Category I; Currently Contracted Michigan Medicaid Health Plan or does this speaks to plans under Category V? 

All proposals will be evaluated based on the 5 HEDIS measures listed in Article 3.022, Step 5.
77. Article 3, Section 3.022, Step 4, Page 88.  It states that the State will utilize the material submitted in Article 5 to evaluate the following criteria, and then there are seven items listed.  Are those the only seven items that will be evaluated for the “Pass/Fail” score, or does the evaluation include all requirements of Article 5.  For example, there is a requirement in Section 5.012 related to Prior Experience, but it is not referenced in Step 4. 

Factors not listed in Section 3.022 are not part of the scoring process.  However, the State reserves the right to consider other factors such as prior experience, when making the final contract awards.

78.  Article 3, Section 3.022, Step 7, Page 93.  If there is a tie score among two or more health plans in a county, will both plans be allowed into the county even if it exceeds the desired number of plans listed in Appendix 10, or will there be some sort of tie-breaker determination by the State?

The State reserves the right to utilize other factors such as prior experience to serve as a tie breaker or to award a contract to both plans.

79. The State reserves the right to limit awards in a county. Once adequate access has been attained (cut-off points), the State reserves right not to offer an award to any additional Bidders in that county. Exceptions to this may be made if the restriction of additional Bidders will result in significant enrollee disruption and loss of continuity of care.  The RFP references county, as opposed to region.  Is this correct?

Yes.  The State will award contracts to Bidder’s on a county basis.

Explanation of Benefits/EOB

80. It states Contractors are required to provide EOB to 5% of enrollees receiving services.  EOB distribution must comply with State and federal regulations and MDCH will monitor at the annual site visit.  We have been prohibited from sending EOBs.  Are we to begin sending them to our Medicaid members?

The effective date of the requirement is October 1, 2009.

81. Please define methodology required or allowed for Contractors to provide 5% of enrollees with EOB`s for those receiving services? Does the Contractor have full discretion to decide which 5% to distribute? Please define if this requirement is strictly a Medicaid contractual requirement or if this requirement has basis in State Statutory law or State Departmental rules and regulations.

The FY 2010 Contract will require the Contractor to distribute Explanation of Benefits (EOBs) to members based on 5% of the plan’s paid claims for their population in order to validate services rendered. The Contractor will use a sampling of 5% of the plan’s paid claims for this distribution on a quarterly basis.  The effective date of the requirement is October 1, 2009 and is mandated from an audit finding from CMS.

82. Does MDCH anticipate that the 5% requirement will increase in future contract periods?

There is no anticipation for an increase in the percentage of the sampling.
83. The EOB distribution must comply with all State and federal regulations regarding release of information as directed by MDCH. It is assumed that the goal is to provide information to validate the services rendered. Therefore, an effective format might be different than a traditional EOB. Do the health plans have flexibility in the format and information contained within the EOB?  
Health plans may use flexibility in the format used as long as the information sent to members validates the services rendered

84. Will it be 5% of enrollees or 5% of claims?  

Five percent of paid claims for the Contractor’s enrollees.

85. EOB Item 1.022.O (page 32): Federal guidance regarding distribution of Explanation of Benefits (EOBs) indicates that “confidential services” are defined by each state. Please identify those service/procedure codes considered by the Michigan Department of Community Health to represent confidential services and clarify whether the codes are omitted from the reporting process used for fee-for-service beneficiaries or are identified by generic descriptions. Please specifically identify omitted codes as well as any generic descriptions used.

The effective date of the requirement is October 1, 2009 and is mandated from an audit finding from CMS.  There will be regulations surrounding this new requirement concerning confidentiality issues. MDCH will provide guidance to the successful Bidders on the confidential services that must be exempt from this process by means of procedure codes and descriptions.  A sample of the template used by Fee for Service will also be made available to the successful Bidders.

File Layouts
86. Please define enrollment file layout specifications and timing of enrollment file transfers and periodic updates.  Can Bidders obtain daily enrollment file updates from MDCH or State enrollment Contractor, and are these available on a “push “basis from State or “pull down” basis by Contractor? 

MDCH utilizes HIPAA-compliant 834 enrollment files to transmit all enrollment information to Contractors.  The 834 Data Clarification Guide is located at http://www.michigan.gov/mdch/0,1607,7-132-2945_24020-147973--,00.html.  The 834 implementation guide is available for purchase at http://www.wpc-edi.com/content/view/400/160/.  Daily files from the State’s Enrollment Broker are not official enrollment files.

87. Please define pharmacy rebilling process, electronic file specifications and any process timing limitations to resolve disputed rebillings.  Please provide Web site reference or technical contact information for state PBM managing this process. 

Instructions are available on the First Health Web site at www.michigan.fhsc.com. 

88. Please provide technical specifications for PCP and other provider Submission Update Files referenced or provide the Web site address where technical file specifications are available. 
File Specifications are attached.

89. Please provide technical specifications, file layouts and IT contact person for all performance monitoring and reporting standards required in Appendix 4 (or Web site reference containing this information).

The data specifications are provided in an attachment.  MDCH assigns a Contract Manager to all Contractors to facilitate communications between the various areas of MDCH and the Contractor.

90. Is “audit” file the one time per month file supporting the capitation payment?

Yes.
Financial Reporting Requirements

91. Please confirm that MDCH would like a copy of the First Quarter Financial Statement to be included in the Bidder’s proposal (in addition to the copy sent to MDCH and OFIR on 5/15).


Bidders are required to submit an annual Financial Statement and a 1st Quarter 2009 Financial Statement with the bid response.

92. In bullet points 1 and 3 in Article 5, Section 5.019, with regard to the annual and quarterly financial statements, are copies of the “jurat page” acceptable or are original signatures required? 

Copies of the “jurat page” are acceptable.

93. Article 5, Section 5.019, Page 108.  In bullet points 1 and 3, are health plans required to submit the supplement statements required by OFIR, specifically the FIS Forms, as part of the financial statements required in this section?  Will the 2007 audited financial statements be accepted as fulfillment of this required document?

Bidders may not utilize 2007 statements.  All requirements stated in Section 5.019 must be submitted with the bid proposal, even though these may not be due to OFIR until June 1.   Submission of the 5.019 requirements will satisfy Section 3.022, Step 2 #4.  Please remember that Article 3 describes the information the State needs to evaluate the Bidders' proposal.  Article 5 delineates the information that the Bidder must submit in order for the State to evaluate the bid proposal.

94. Article 5, Section 5.019, Page 108.  In bullet point 2, please clarify that DMB & MDCH acknowledge that the certified actuarial opinion for calendar year 2008 is not part of the audited annual financial statement prepared by an independent public accountant and is a separate document to be submitted in response to this section.

The audited annual financial statement prepared by an independent public accountant must be submitted in the Bidder’s proposal.

95. Article 5, Section 5.019, Page 108.  In bullet point 2, are health plans required to submit the Accountants Letter of Qualifications, Independent CPA and Report of Significant Deficiencies in Internal Controls, which are related to the Audited Financial Statements but not due to OFIR until June 1 and August 1, respectively, as part of the audited financial statements required in this section?  

All requirements stated in Section 5.019 must be submitted with the bid proposal, even though these may not be due to OFIR until June 1.  Documents due to OFIR and MDCH on August 1 need not be included in the Bidder’s proposal. 

96. Article 3, Section 3.022, Step 2, #5, Page 85.  Please specify how the Bidder is to demonstrate “that the current level of capital and surplus will be sufficient to immediately accept all enrollments” as required in Item #5.  Are projected financial statements and/or projected risk based capital reports required?  

The State will utilize the annual and quarterly financial statements to assess the capital and surplus needed for all enrollments that may be assigned to the Bidder based on the projected enrollment and the number of plans within a county.  Projected financial statements and projected risk based capital reports will not be accepted.

97. As of what date is current level of capital determined?  Is this to be based on the capital and surplus as reported in the quarterly statement filing for the first quarter of 2009, as of March 31, 2009? 

The State will utilize the annual 2008 and first quarter 2009 financial statements to assess the capital and surplus needed for all enrollments that may be assigned to the Bidder based on the projected enrollment and the number of plans within a county.  Therefore, the final date of financial data that will be utilized is 3/31/09.

98. In Step 2 (page 85 of the RFP) Bidder Minimum Qualifications, paragraph 5 states that the Bidder must demonstrate that the current level of capital and surplus will be sufficient to immediately accept all enrollments.  What date will be used for determination – May 21, 2009 (Date of bid submission) or October 1, 2009 (Contract Effective Date)?

The State will utilize the annual 2008 and first quarter 2009 financial statements to assess the capital and surplus needed for all enrollments that may be assigned to the Bidder based on the projected enrollment and the number of plans within a county.  Therefore, the final date of financial data that will be utilized is 3/31/09.

99. Article 3, Section 3.022, Step 2, #5, Page 85.  What is meant by the term “all enrollments” in the following statement:  “The Bidder’s response must demonstrate that the current level of capital and surplus will be sufficient to immediately accept all enrollments.” 

Capital and surplus must be sufficient to cover enrollments that may be assigned to the Bidder based on the projected enrollment and the number of plans within a county.

100. Bidders are required to include financial statements in the response in the format prescribed by OFIR formatting in legal size.  Are copies of financial statements on a letter size paper acceptable in the response?

The financial statement must be produced on letter size paper.

Fraud and Abuse

101. The Contractor must report all (employee, providers and members) suspected fraud and/or abuse that warrant investigation to MDCH Medicaid Integrity Program. Health plans are constantly reviewing provider, members and employee activities for a variety of reasons. Can the State please be more prescriptive in defining what and when investigations should be reported?

No.  The federal law requires that the Contractor report all (employee, providers and members) suspected fraud and/or abuse that warrant investigation to MDCH Medicaid Integrity Program.

Governing Body
102. If a licensed HMO is compliant with governing body requirements  for 1/3 of adult enrollees with their commercial enrollment, does this meet the RFP requirement indicated or do the adult enrollees need to include Medicaid enrollees ? 

Governing Body members must be enrollees of the Contractor not enrollees of any affiliate of the Contractor (such as a parent company).

103. Is it permissible for Contractors to provide a nominal payment to members serving on the board for their expenses?

Yes.

Indemnification

104. Article 2, Section 2.142 Code Indemnification. Please clarify what "No Surreptitious Code Warranty" means and how it applies to health plans.

The No Surreptitious Code Warranty means that the Contractor represents and warrants that no copy of licensed Software provided to the State contains or will contain in any Self-Help Code or any Unauthorized Code as defined below.  This may not apply if a Contractor's proposal does not contemplate providing software programs under the Contract.


As used in this Contract, "Self-Help Code" means any back door, time bomb, drop dead device, or other software routine designed to disable a computer program automatically with the passage of time or under the positive control of a person other than the licensee of the software. Self-Help Code does not include Software routines in a computer program, if any, designed to permit an owner of the computer program (or other person acting by authority of the owner) to obtain access to a licensee's computer system(s) (e.g. remote access via modem) for purposes of maintenance or technical support.

As used in this Contract, "Unauthorized Code" means any virus, Trojan horse, spyware, worm or other Software routines or components designed to permit unauthorized access to disable, erase, or otherwise harm software, equipment, or data; or to perform any other such actions. The term Unauthorized Code does not include Self-Help Code.

In addition, Contractor will use up-to-date commercial virus detection software to detect and remove any viruses from any software prior to delivering it to the State.

Key Personnel and Contractor Staff

105. Please define frequency or time period in which resumes of key administrative staff are required to be updated?

Resumes of key administrative staff should be updated whenever significant information provided in the resume has changed.

106. Section 1.031.C seems to indicate that MHPs are responsible for notifying MDCH of any and all vacancies within 30 days.  Please clarify that staff identified in subsection 11 (support/ administrative staff) are exempt from this standard.

Correct. 

107. Under the heading “Administrative Personnel”, it says “include position descriptions and resumes under this heading”.  Do you want these for all Administrative Personnel, in addition to Key Personnel, as designated on pages 49 & 50 (1-11 positions)?

Bidders must provide position descriptions and resumes for the following positions:

· Executive Director/CEO

· Medical Director

· Quality Improvement Director

· Chief Financial Officer

· Management Information Services Director

· Compliance Officer

108. The RFP states we are to provide a copy of the organizational chart with reporting structures, names, and positions to MDCH upon request.  The Contractor must also provide a written narrative that documents the educational background, applicable licensure, relevant work experience, and current job description for the key personnel identified in the organizational chart.  Article 5.013 refers us to Section 1.031, but says the Bidder must provide resumes for key personnel.  In addition to these resumes, do you also want:


· A brief narrative for each key personnel

· Every position on the organizational chart

· Every position, as well as employee name on the organizational chart

Bidders must provide resumes for Key Personnel.  The Bidder may also provide a written narrative that includes relevant information on the Key Personnel’s educational background, applicable licensure, relevant work experience, and current job description that is not provided in the resumes.

Bidders must provide a complete organizational chart that lists each position in the organization (and parent organization, if applicable).  Names, as well as position titles, should be provided for all managerial-level positions.

109. The RFP requires that the Bidder provide disclosure statements fully disclosing the nature and extent of any contracts or arrangements between the Bidder or a provider or other person concerning any financial relationship with the Bidder any one of the following: the individuals responsible for the conduct of the Bidder’s affairs, or the immediate families, or any legal entity in which they or their families have a financial interest of 5% or more of the equity of the entity.   Please define “individuals responsible for conduct of the Bidder’s affairs”. Does this mean board members and officers?  Bidder management staff?  

In general, this term would include the following: directors, officers, partners, managing employees, or other persons with beneficial ownership of 5% or more of the entity's equity.  Pursuant to 42 CFR 420.201 a managing employee means a general manager, business manager, administrator, director, or other individual that exercises operational or managerial control over, or who directly or indirectly conducts, the day-to-day operation of the institution, organization, or agency, either under contract or through some other arrangement, whether or not the individual is a W-2 employee.

110. A few years ago Michigan adopted the NAIC biographical affidavit form for OFIR and MDCH site visits.  The NAIC biographical affidavit has 10% threshold for disclosure of financial interest.  Is this or another conflict of interest acceptable in a Bidders response for this section?  

No.

111. HMOs are required by OFIR to submit disclosure statements for board members and officers using the NAIC biographical affidavit form.  Will submission of this form for board members and officers be acceptable for compliance in this section?

No. The threshold for financial interest is different; therefore, these statements may not be complete.

112. Please clarify what is required to be submitted regarding the disclosure statement.  Do you want a notarized statement even if there are no such relationships?

If the Bidder has no relationships to report, the Bidder should submit a notarized statement attesting that the Bidder has no contracts or arrangements between the Contractor or a provider or other person concerning any financial relationship with the Contractor and any of the following: 

· the individuals responsible for the conduct of the Bidder's affairs, or

· their immediate families, or 

· any legal entity in which they or their families have a financial interest of 5% or more of the equity of the entity.
113. Contractor Personnel Qualifications. This provision states that all persons assigned by Contractor to the performance of services under this Contract must be employees of Contractor or its subsidiaries. Are affiliates (i.e. an entity that controls, is controlled by or is under common control with the Bidder) considered employees?  For example, are employees of a plan’s parent company, or subsidiaries of the parent company, considered employees for purposes of 2.061.  Conversely, do affiliates meet the definition of subcontractors under 2.070 if employees of affiliates perform services required under the Contract?  Section 2.112 seems to support that affiliates are not considered subcontractors, as parent and affiliates are listed separately in this provision, while subcontractors are also listed in the provision.

Bidders are expected to identify all business relationships with any parties performing work under the Contract, irrespective of whether the party is its affiliate, subsidiary, or Subcontractor.  All persons performing work under the Contract must be fully qualified to perform the work assigned to them.  All parties performing work under the Contract must abide by the record retention provisions of Section 2.112 as identified in Section 2.074.
Liability

114. The Liability Insurance Section of the RFP requires the Contractor list the State of Michigan, its departments, divisions, agencies, offices, commissions, officers, employees and agents as Additional Insured on Commercial General Liability certificate and motor vehicle liability certificate. Additional Insured is not mentioned on workers compensation, employer liability, employee fidelity, umbrella or excess liability, or professional liability. Please confirm that naming the State as an Additional Insured on these policies is not required.

Additional insured status would not be applicable for worker’s comp, employer liability, or professional liability coverage.  For employee fidelity, the State asks to be named as a loss payee to cover the State in the event of theft of State property by a Contractor’s employee.  Umbrella liability should add the State as an additional insured.

115. The Liability Insurance of the RFP requires waiver of subrogation by the insurance company for Commercial General Liability, Motor Vehicle Liability, and Worker’s Compensation.  Waiver of subrogation of policy is not mentioned for Employers Liability, Employee Fidelity, Umbrella or Excess Liability, or Professional Liability. Please confirm Waiver of Subrogation is not required for these insurance types.

Umbrella or Excess Liability coverage must meet all of the requirements in Subsection 1 (Commercial General Liability), including the waiver.  The others do not, however all insurances must be PRIMARY and NON-CONTRIBUTING to any comparable liability insurance (including self-insurances) carried by the State.

116. Plan must waive the subrogation right for the State but may not want to waive the right of subrogation for the individual’s insurance who is an employee of the State.  For example, if a State employee’s car injures an employee of the plan can the Bidder exclude the State employee in the waiver?

The Contractor is not required to waive subrogation against insurances of self insurances not naming the State of Michigan as an insured.

117. Please provide additional clarification regarding the specific personnel that may be subject to background checks.

As explained in Section 2.091, MDCH may request background checks on a "case-by-case basis." No additional clarification can be given until MDCH reviews submitted proposals.

Medical Records

118. For monitoring of Medical Records at provider sites, can plan conduct a sampling process to monitor this responsibility and not be required to audit all primary care provider records? 

Yes.
Member Handbook/Member Services
119. Article 3.022 Step 4 (6) Member Handbook (m) the RFP states that information must be in the handbook to address how enrollees can contribute towards their own health by taking responsibility, including appropriate and inappropriate behavior? Could you provide clarification as to what this entails or is this the Member Rights and Responsibilities? If it is not Member's Rights and Responsibilities, for handbooks that have been already approved, would it be acceptable to make this change with the handbook changes for the current year as this would then be new requirement? 

This is not a new requirement.  MHPs are required to provide information on healthy behaviors in the member handbook.  It is not required to be part of the Member Rights and Responsibility Section; however, this information may be incorporated in that section.
120. Please define how the linguistic needs of the population are defined and administered by MDCH related to this Contract requirement. 

Contractors are required to provide interpretative services for individuals who speak languages other than English or are hard of hearing/deaf.

121. Can member education materials provided through an on-line web portal be common materials and share a common access point for like or same materials provided to the HMO commercial membership or are separate materials and separate web portal or other access point required for the Medicaid enrollees? 

Health Plans must have separate materials for the Medicaid population but they may share a common access point on the web.

Member Incentives/Marketing

122. Can Health plan offer member incentives to encourage member health behaviors related to clinical or administrative quality improvement efforts?  If incentives are allowed, does any reporting or other requirements exist for use of member incentives? 

Yes.  Requirements for reporting and approval are included in Section 1.022(E)(2) and 1.022(CC)
123. Are MHP contracted providers permitted to share their health plan affiliations with their patients?  What, if any restrictions apply to these practices?

Contracted providers may tell their patients the health plans with which they contract.  However, the health plan may not conduct any marketing activities in the provider’s office.  The health plan may not write materials for the contracted providers to use for marketing purposes. See section 1.022(CC)(2).
Quality Strategy

124. Will the State provide the current MDCH Quality Strategy for review by the Bidders?
The MDCH Quality Strategy is attached.
Prior Experience

125. Prior Experience: RFP requires Bidder to include description of Medicaid experience to include project/client descriptions, costs, starting and completion dates of projects/contracts successfully completed.  Should Bidders include information about Medicaid contracts held by the Bidder in the State of Michigan?  In other states?  What does the RFP mean when requesting costs? Should the Bidder provide revenue collected under the contracts as costs?  Should the Bidder provide identify the costs specified on the current year’s Contract Change Notice?

Bidders should include a complete description of all relevant prior experience including prior contracts with Michigan as well as other states.  A complete description would include the size of the contract in terms of financial revenue generated.  

126. Prior performance and financial stability may be factors in an award decision. As there are no points allocated based on past performance or financial stability does this indicate that the State reviewers will evaluate these factors as part of one of the first four steps of the review process?

The JEC reserves the right to review a Bidder’s prior performance and financial stability in making the final award recommendation.

Provider Appeal

127. Please clarify the provider appeal attestation sub-items.  The current Contract does not require acknowledgement of receipt of provider appeal. This is a requirement of the member grievance and appeal process, but not the current provider appeal process.  Please confirm it is the intent to require receipt of appeal in the provider appeal process under the new Contract.  The current Contract does specify timeframe for resolution of provider pre-service appeals. This conflicts with the timeframe for enrollee grievance and appeal specified in Article 1.022, I. (1) (c).  Please confirm the requirement to resolve pre-service appeals within 14 calendar days is accurate. 

3.022 Step 3 # 7 is revised to read as follows:

Provider Appeals (Reference: Section 1.022(Q) and Attestation #7)

The Bidder must attest that the Bidder’s provider appeal policies and procedures meet the following minimum requirements: 

· Pre-service (utilization management) appeals are resolved within 14 calendar days

· Pre-service expedited appeals are resolved within three business days

· Appeal policy and procedures are available on the Bidder’s web-site

Provider Network
128. Please define how Bidder “sufficient capacity to handle maximum number of enrollees specified under this RFP” will be defined and applied. Specifically, will all Bidders be required to propose sufficient network capacity to handle all projected 492,170 members for Wayne County or any other county membership as projected by the State?

MDCH will utilize the preferred PCP to member ratio of 1:750 to determine if a Bidder has a sufficient network in each county.  MDCH has determined the number of plans and capacity needed to serve a county based on this ratio.  
129. In regard to utilizing provider networks in contiguous counties, are there distance or access requirements that must be met, e.g., providers in the contiguous county must be within 30 miles distance of the primary county?

Providers in contiguous counties must meet the 30 minute/30 mile standard for member access.

130. How will MDCH process/approve a request for a service area expansion with regard to the OFIR bulletin issued in February 2009? Are there any material differences in the MDCH service area evaluation process given the revised OFIR policy?

MDCH continues to base service area expansion decisions upon the following factors:

· Need for additional capacity in the county

· Provider network

· OFIR approval

· Financial ability to accept additional enrollments

131. If a Bidder is proposing a service area expansion, is it sufficient that the Bidder secures OFIR approval before the Contract start date? Or is the Bidder required to obtain OFIR approval prior to submitting their bid?

Contractors must have OFIR approval prior to submission of the bid in order to submit a bid on a county.

132. What is the standard for petitioning MDCH for a rural exception designation? Does this affect Preferred Option Counties (POCs)?

MDCH determines which counties are designated as rural exception counties and Preferred Option Counties.  The two programs are completely separate.  Bidders cannot request a Rural Exception designation.
Provider Payments/Incentives

133. Does State Medicaid payment methodology utilize Medicare DRG’s and APC groupings for hospital facility payments? If so please provide reference to complete payment methodology and base rate factors.

Refer to the Medicaid Provider Manual available on the MDCH Web site.

134. Does the MDCH Web site provide all State of Michigan Medicaid Fee Schedule information to provide complete, machine readable, Medicaid Fee Schedule for all provider types to allow Contractor to comply with this  1.022(F)(2)?  Please provide specific Web site addresses where this information is available to contractors. 

Yes. The MDCH Web site is www.michigan.gov/mdch. 

135. Are all provider payment, electronic payment and dispute resolution requirements contained in MCL 400.111i, Appendix 4 and HIPAA and MDCH guidelines as referenced in the RFP?  If yes, please provide specific Web site reference addresses to obtain technical specifications and other requirements. If no, please provide complete listing of requirements referenced in RFP with respect to provider payment to allow Contractor to achieve compliance.  

Provider payment requirements are governed by MCL 400.111i, Appendix 4, HIPAA, the Hospital Access Agreement, Medicaid Policy, and the Contract.  Potential Bidders have access to this public information on www.michigan.gov/mdch.
136. Please define if there is any specific reporting, approval or other standards that address provider quality incentive payments such as pay for performance plans. 

Physician incentive plan reporting requirements are included under 1.022(M).  Prior to implementation of a new incentive program for provider, Contractors must notify MDCH.

137. Is the Contractor required to provide copies of 1099s on request to MDCH or is this data requirement met with submission of encounter files or other reporting by Contractor? 

Copies must be provided upon request.  Submission of encounter files does not meet this requirement.

138. Please provide clarification on the recoupment provisions. What constitutes complete recoupment from providers within 90 days? Does it mean fully collected? For plans that attempt recovery via the claims system, the 90-day window may not be reasonable to fully collect if insufficient claims are received to offset. 

If a beneficiary is retroactively disenrolled from the health plan, the Contractor may recoup money from the provider and inform the provider to bill Medicaid.  Medicaid requires providers to submit claims within 365 of the date of service.  The time limit is intended to ensure that providers have the opportunity to bill Medicaid for services for which the Contractor is recouping.  Contractors must initiate the recoupment process within 180 days of notification of the retroactive disenrollment.

139. In light of the 90-day limitation for the health plan to take recoveries, is MDCH willing to limit retroactive capitation take backs to the same period?

No.

140. Do the recoupment provisions apply to Coordination of Benefits (COB) and other recoveries, i.e. claims paid in error?

Contractors must comply with industry standards and Medicaid policy for Coordination of Benefit recoveries and post-payment review.

Sanctions
141. Can intermediate sanctions referenced for appointment of a temporary management be applied independently of OFIR action or is this sanction limited to action by OFIR for violation of state HMO regulations? 

The State may impose intermediate sanctions, including temporary management, for non-compliance with the Contract.  It is not limited to violations of the state HMO regulations.

Subcontractors

142. Are auditors, such as Plante & Moran, considered an Administrative Subcontractor Type C?

No.
143. Are subcontractors of affiliates considered to also be subcontractors of the plan for purposes of completing, Appendix 9?

If the entity performs services for the Bidder as described in section 2.070, then the entity must be reported as a subcontractor of the Bidder.

144. Please provide clarification regarding the provision whereby MDCH may petition for a MHP to terminate its transportation provider contract. What are the circumstances under which the MDCH would take this preemptive action? How much notice will be provided to MHPs? Is a curative period allowed? It could take up to 6 months to identify, contract and credential a new transportation provider.

Contractors are required to ensure that subcontractors fulfill all relevant Contract requirements.  If MDCH determines that a Contractor’s transportation vendor is not providing services required under the Contract, MDCH will work with the Contractor to establish a corrective action plan with the transportation vendor.  If the corrective action plan is not successful, MDCH will request that that Contractor find a new transportation vendor within a timeline determined by MDCH.
145. Are Bidders required to submit insurance certificates for subcontractors?

Yes, as specified in Section 2.132.

146. For the section called “Bidders Liability Insurance.”  Please clarify what is to be included in this section.  Is the Bidder required to submit proof of the minimum levels of insurance coverage for the Bidder as part of RFP response?  Is the Bidder required to submit proof of the minimum levels of insurance coverage for each of its subcontractors as part of the RFP response?

Certificate of Liability Insurance documents (Bidder and subcontractors) must be submitted after award.  The Bidder must submit a statement that Certificate of Liability Insurance documents will be provided as a condition of award. 

147. Should Sections 2.101 and 2.102 be added to the list of sections identified in Section 2.074?
Yes.

Termination
148. Article 2, Section 2.161 Termination by Contractor. There is only one section (section 2.161) that allows the Contractor to terminate the contract and only if the State breaches. We interpret this to mean that the removal of the Contractors right to terminate for convenience with 90-days notice has been removed; is this correct? If so, what is the rationale? If, not, please provide clarification of where plans would have the ability to terminate for convenience in the RFP as it is not readily identifiable.

Yes, the Contractor’s right to terminate for convenience with 90-days notice has been removed from the State of Michigan’s standard contract language.
Third Party Liability
149. Please provide specific Medicaid policy reference and Web site location that defines Michigan Medicaid Policy regarding TPL as referenced in the RFP. 
The Medicaid Provider Manual, Coordination of Benefits chapter (http://www.mdch.state.mi.us/dch-medicaid/manuals/MedicaidProviderManual.pdf), contains most references to third party liability.  However, Contractors are required to know and comply with all aspects of Medicaid policy.

150. Please specify reporting requirements and formats to allow Contractor to report third party collections in encounter data submission and in aggregate as required by the RFP.  

Contractors must follow the HIPAA regulations for submission of coordination of benefit information on the 837 transactions.  As indicated in the report schedule in Appendix 3, third party recoveries must be written on a separate sheet and submitted to MDCH with the financial reports.

151. No mention is made relative to subrogation recoveries, unless it is expected to be understood as part of the TPL language. Is there language that clearly spells out the Contractor’s right to retain subrogation recoveries? 


Subrogation recoveries are covered as part of the third party liability recoveries.
152. When denying a claim due to other insurance, the Contractor must provide the other insurance carrier ID, if known, to the billing provider. A significant amount of other insurance information resides with a couple of carriers. Is the State willing to make it a requirement for those carriers to provide information to the State on behalf of the health plans, to maximize the other insurance opportunities?

The State conducts automatic data sharing with Medicare and one commercial provider.  This information is provided to Contractors on the enrollment file. 

Value Added Criteria
153. With regard to National awards Recognition, the RFP states “The initiative must be related to improving quality of care, addressing racial and ethnic health care disparities, facilitating organization wide cultural competency, or encouraging consumers to take an active role in their own care and make informed choices.” It is unclear as written if the award must be related to all four of the points.

The national recognition awards may relate to only one of the criteria; the Bidder may choose the criteria.

154. For coordinating programs with PIHP, can the projects be of any type of care being provided by the PIHP, not just limited to coordination of inpatient mental health services?

Yes, any type of coordination of care may be submitted by the Bidder.
155. How much flexibility is there in the National Awards Recognition award dates? Will MDCH recognize awards received after September 2007? 

No, the dates listed in the RFP are October 1, 2004 through September 30, 2007.

156. Does Section 3.022 allow recognition of a national award for a Medicaid initiative implemented by a parent company in another state if the same initiative has been implemented in Michigan?

The Bidder may not submit recognition for awards given in another state to a parent company.  These awards must relate to Michigan.

157. Will MDCH please provide examples of “National Award” it will deem acceptable in the value added criteria?

The Bidder may submit any National Award that received by the Bidder in the time frame indicated.
158. For the national awards recognition under value added services, can a health plan’s ranking in the U.S. News and World Report/NCQA’s America’s Best Health Plans be considered a national award?  If so, is there a cut off for the recognition level (i.e. Top 20 Plans only) since any plan that submits data would be ranked somewhere on the list.

No.  The US News and World Report is considered a “ranking” and not a national award.

159. In describing e-prescribing initiatives, Bidders are asked to provide data on the number of prescriptions processed from January 2009 through May 2009. As the proposal is due May 21, 2009, should MDCH provide an earlier cut off date?

The Bidder should provide data through 5/1/09. 
160. The RFP requires that Bidders include in their narrative describing Provider Incentives for PCMH an indication of the applicable PCMH principle that is addressed by the incentive. Is this requirement referring to the AAP, AAFP, etc. principles outlined on page 93?

Yes, the requirements relate to the principles as described in the RFP, however, please review the examples of the incentives listed.

161. The RFP directs Bidders to provide a description of a provider incentive, and specifies that one implemented initiative is required and additional points will not be provided for describing additional initiatives. However, on page 93 of the RFP, it is stated that the State will review the Bidder’s description of provider incentives in one or more of four specified areas. Please clarify if the Bidder should be describing a single incentive, or multiple incentives.


The Bidder may describe one or more incentives; however the State will only award one point even if multiple incentives are described.  
162. Although Bidders will not receive more than one point for each value added category, can Bidders describe more than one initiative per each value added category so long as the Bidder complies with the one-page requirement? 

Yes, as long as the Bidder complies with the one-page requirement per value-added category.

163. Is it acceptable to provide a response describing an initiative for more than one HIE type described in the RFP?  It is understood that there still be only one point available for this section.  If more than one is described does it still have to be on one page or can each HIE type description be on one page?

Yes, as long as the Bidder complies with the one-page requirement per value-added category.

164. Please confirm that Bidders may use up to one-page for each value added criterion that requires a written description. Is the one-page limitation a single-side or double-sided page?

A one-page description is allowed for each of the five criteria and should be limited to one side of the page.

165. Please confirm that a narrative description should not be provided for the Bidder’s response to the Population Management Experience for the Disabled Population.

The Bidder should provide a narrative describing the State and the time period over which the Bidder has served the disabled population.  

166. Will evidence of E-Portal for Provider capabilities for member eligibility verification, authorization requests, formulary, and claims inquiry be acceptable as meeting requirements for one point for scoring for this criterion?

Yes.
167. RFP states that the Bidder must limit response to one page of single spaced 11-font.  Is it acceptable for the Bidder to include Attachments that support the one page summary response?

No.  The response must be limited to one page of narrative without attachments.

168. For the PIHP/MHP care coordination criteria, will this be scored once and the score carried across all counties the Plan is bidding or should there be separate activity descriptions specific to each county the Plan is bidding? 

The Value-Added points will be added to the Bidder’s score in all counties for which the Bidder submits a proposal.

Withhold

169. Article 1, Section 1.062 states that the withhold percentage will be .0050 of the approved capitation.  In the current MCO Contract, the withhold percentage is .0019.  Please confirm that it is MDCH’s intent to change the performance withhold percentage for the new Contract.   

MDCH will change the performance withhold percentage to .0050 of the approved capitation with the FY 2010 Contract.

170. This section discusses the performance bonus withhold and methodology.  The RFP increases the withhold amount from the .0019 to .0050.  Will MDCH consider maintaining the withhold amount at the FY09 level of .0019 or changing the distribution methodology?
MDCH will change the performance withhold percentage to .0050 of the approved capitation with the FY 2010 Contract.  Further discussion on distribution will be released to the successful Bidders.
171. Is the decrease to health plan rates by the change from 0.19% to 0.50% of a capitation payment withhold required to manage the Medicaid managed care program?  .

The change in the withhold is not driven by requirements for managing the Medicaid managed care program but is intended to allow MDCH more latitude in incentivizing MDCH objectives.
Section III:  Appendices
Appendix 3

172. Please clarify whether the reporting periods and due dates are accurate as listed in Appendix 3.

No.  The original version of Appendix 3 had errors in the “Period Covered” column.  A revised Appendix 3 is attached.
Appendix 5
173.  Please confirm what documentation is required for each county the Bidder is submitting a bid in terms of access maps. Does MDCH prefer separate maps (total = 2) for PCPs and hospitals for each county?   Will it be acceptable to submit separate maps for hospitals and primary care providers for each county?  Also, please define “contracted providers” for purposes of the access study; is MDCH expecting the access study to cover PCPs and hospitals only? 

At a minimum, Bidders must submit access maps for PCPs and hospitals.  The State prefers separate maps.  Bidders may also submit access maps for specialists and ancillary providers to further demonstrate the adequacy of the Bidder’s network.

174. If providers in contiguous counties are accessed to provide services in a county, should the Bidder include these providers on the map?

Yes.
175. Article 3.022, Step 4 (3) (a), Provider Network, states that MDCH will utilize the ratio of one full-time PCP per 750 members to determine maximum enrollment capacity. Will this calculation utilize open contracted PCPs only or will it encompass all contracted PCPs, PCPs accepting both new and existing members? 

All contracted PCPs—both PCPs accepting new members and PCPs accepting existing members.
176. The instructions for Appendix 5 indicate that the same PCP cannot be counted in both the county of its location and a contiguous county. Is this true even if the PCP provides a minimum of 20 hours for patients living in each county?

A PCP may only be counted one time per office location.

177. Appendix 5 indicates that PCPs may be counted only once per office location. Is this true even if the PCP provides at least 40 hours of care at the location?

A PCP may only be counted one time per office location.

178. For the contiguous county PCP reporting in Appendix 5, may the health plan utilize the PCP’s from one county for multiple contiguous counties, as long as the PCP’s are only counted once?  For example:  The Health Plan has 150 PCP’s in Kent County and has decided to report 10 in Allegan County and 5 in Ottawa County.  Only 135 PCP’s will be reported in Kent with the other 5 and 10 reported in the contiguous county columns for Ottawa and Allegan.
This is correct provided that the PCPs in Kent county that are reported in the contiguous county columns for Ottawa and Allegan meet the 30 minute/30 mile travel time for the majority of residents in Ottawa and Allegan, respectively. 

179. Appendix 5 requires the Bidder to provide a count of providers by county and provider type.  Is the Bidder also required to provide a detailed listing of providers?  If so, what information should be included: provider name, address, phone, county, and specialty?

Bidders are not required to provide a detailed listing.  Bidders must complete and submit Appendix 5.

180. Section 5.022 states that Bidders must include only contracted providers in Appendix 5.  Can a Bidder include hospitals that are not directly contracted but do participate with the Bidder through the Michigan Hospital Access Agreement?

No, the Bidder must include only those providers for whom the Bidder has a contract to provide services to the Bidder’s Medicaid population.

181. If a PCP practices in two locations and each location is in a different county.  Is each location considered a PCP with a capacity of 750 patients?

Yes, providers may be counted once per office location regardless if the locations are in the same or separate county.

182. If a PCP practices in two locations within a county.  Is each location considered a PCP with a capacity of 750 patients?

Yes, providers may be counted once per office location regardless if the locations are in the same or separate county
183. In completing appendix 5, how are plans to identify providers with multiple office locations? Does each location count or does only one location count as one provider?  
Providers may be counted only once per office location.  Each location may be counted as a separate provider as long as the PCP spends a minimum of 20 hours per week at that location.
184. Please define how specialists and providers from contiguous counties are interpreted for application to PCP-to-enrollee ratio standard. Are all providers from contiguous counties able to be applied to the related service area county? 

The State will utilize PCPs reported in the “PCPs from Contiguous Counties” column when determining the number of PCPs available in a county and in determining the PCP-to-enrollee ratio for a county.
185. Does MDCH have a preference for how Bidders should indicate the counties in which they are submitting a bid? 
The State will utilize Appendix 5 to ascertain which counties are covered by a Bidder’s proposal.  To include a county in the bid, the Bidder should complete each cell in the row for that county in Appendix 5.  For those counties in which the Bidder is not submitting a bid, the row for that county in Appendix 5 should be blank.

186. Please confirm that county specific information is required for the Provider Network documentation only (i.e., maps and access studies).

The Bidder must submit county specific information in Appendix 5, Appendix 7 and for all Sections of the Bidder’s proposal in which county specific information is appropriate/relevant to the Bidders proposal.

187. What 4275 file (which date) will be used to verify each Bidders listing of contracted PCPs and open/close status?

The State will utilize the provider file (4275) from a date between May 1 and July 1. 
188. Please define how specialist or OB/Gyn providers available to act as PCPs should be treated for reporting network capacity in RFP response.  

Only contracted PCPs may be reported as PCPs for purposes of Appendix 5.  OB/GYN and Pediatric Specialists that may act as PCPs should be counted in the total provider column; however, if these specialists are not contracted PCPs, they may not be reported in the PCP column.
Appendix 6/Attestations
189. Does the State want detailed responses for each of the Steps outlined in Article 3, as well as the signed attestations of Appendix 6?  Or, are the signed attestation(s) of Appendix 6 sufficient?   What about the specific requests made, for example, in Article 3, Step 3 (5) where “further attestation” that each standard template has been approved by OFIR is requested? Where in the structure of the RFP should that response be placed? 
The Bidder must provide all information requested in Article 5.  This information should be placed under the appropriate heading as directed in Section 3.055, as corrected in question #12.  The Bidder must sign all attestations and include them in proposal under the heading listed in Section 3.055 “Attestations (include Appendix 6 under this heading)”.
190. Please confirm that for RFP requirements to be met by signed attestation pages that no further documentation is required related to any sections covered under attestation.  Please confirm that additional material can be provided with respect to sections covered under the attestation pages, with no penalty to Bidder for providing additional supplemental materials.   If the RFP requirements addressed in the attestation pages require additional information in addition to the attestation page documentation, please specifically identify additional documentation required by attestation segment included in Appendix 6. 

If the Bidder can attest to all attestation listed in Appendix 6, no further document is required related to the sections covered under the attestations.

191. If a section is listed in Article 3 as an Attestation, then is a detailed response needed in addition to the attestation?  For example, Section 1.031(B) which is Attestation #4, does the health plan need to provide documentation, such as copies of the policies and procedures, in addition to the attestation?

If the Bidder can attest to all attestation listed in Appendix 6, no further document is required related to the sections covered under the attestations.

192. Appendix 6 states that by signing the attestation, Bidders are attesting to and acknowledging the Bidder’s ability to comply with all requirements delineated in Article 1.  How should a health plan respond if found to be incomplete during their most recent MDCH site visit? 

All Bidders must be able to sign attestation # 1. If the Bidder cannot attest to any other specific attestation listed in Appendix 6, the Bidder should not sign the attestation.  The Bidder may supply additional documentation to demonstrate how, by 10/01/09, the Bidder will be in compliance with the specific requirements in Article 1 covered by that attestation.

193. If there is a section in Article 1 that is not specifically listed under any of the attestations and it is not listed in Article 5, then does the Bidder still need to provide a detailed response?  Or, are these sections addressed in the global statement provided in Attestation #1 in Appendix 6.  Examples of sections that fall into this category are:  1.022 (A-G), 1.022 (J-N), 1.022 (S), 1.022 (T), 1.022 (X), 1.022 (AA), 1.022 (BB), 1.022 (CC), 1.022 (DD), 1.022 (EE), 1.042 (A-B), 1.062 (A-C).
Sections in Article 1 not specifically listed in Article 5 or in the attestations in Appendix 6 are addressed in the first Attestation in Appendix 6.

194. Article 3, Section 3.055, Page 96.  In the second paragraph under this heading, it states that if a Bidder meets “attestation criteria” for a particular topic, please insert a sheet stating this under the relevant heading.  Wouldn’t all of the Attestations in Appendix 6 be included in the second to the last bullet point called “Attestations”?

Yes, please ignore the sentence in Article 3, Section 3.055, that states “If a Bidder meets attestation criteria for a particular topic, please insert a sheet stating that the Bidder meets the attestation criteria under the relevant heading.”  This sentence should have been removed from the RFP.  All Attestations should be included in Appendix 6 and placed in the Bidder’s proposal under the heading “Attestations.”

195. Does completion of Appendix 6 satisfy the requirements listed in the checklist with respect to our acknowledgement and concurrence with Articles 1 and 2?  Or, do we need to explicitly state our concurrent with Articles 1 and 2?  If we need to make explicit statements, do we include these under the “Attestation” heading?

Completion of Appendix 6 satisfies the requirements listed in the checklist with respect to acknowledgement and concurrence with Article 1 and part of Article 2.  To comply with the other requirement of the checklist in Article 2, the Bidder must submit a Statement that a Certificate of Insurance will be provided as a condition of award under the heading “Bidder’s Liability Insurance.”

196. Is MDCH looking for individual attestations of the detailed requirements indicated in this section for Attestation #3-11, or is the inclusion of the signed and dated Appendix 6 sufficient to address all of these attestations.

Submission of Appendix 6 is sufficient.

Appendix 7

197. Article 3.022. Step 4 (4) Public and Community Providers Network of the RFP states that plans must have local coordinating agreements with various agencies including substance abuse coordinating agencies, community and migrant health centers, child and adolescent health centers and programs, and local and regional consortiums centered on various health conditions. Plans have not been previously required to have coordinating agreements with these entities especially substance abuse as it is a carved out service. Some CMHSPs are PIHPs as well which will suffice in some instances. However for areas where this is not the case, are plans now required to obtain coordinating agreements with these entities in addition to the CMHSPs?

Section 3.022, Step 4, #4 does not reference CMHSPs and/or PIHPs.  The requirement for coordinating agreements with CMHSPs/PIHPs is addressed in Section 1.022(X) which states that Contractors are required to have agreements with the behavioral health agencies and the developmental disability agencies.  Rather, Step 4 is addressing Section 1.022(W) which states that Contractors are encouraged to collaborate with public and community providers such as local health departments, local DHS offices, family planning agencies, Substance Abuse Coordinating Agencies, community and migrant health centers, child and adolescent health centers and programs, and local or regional consortiums centered on various health conditions.  Further, Section 1.022(W)(2) states that Contractors must establish and maintain agreements with the Maternal Infant Health Program (MIHP) providers in the Contractor’s service area. Appendix 7 requires Bidders to provide information on agreements with these other public and community providers—not the CMHSP/PIHPs—as part of evaluation of the Bidder’s full provider network.

198. Are Bidders required to have 100% of these entities contracted?  If it is less than 100% how will this impact the pass/fail score?

Contractors must establish and maintain agreements with the Maternal Infant Health Program (MIHP) providers, CMHSPs, and PIHPs in the Contractor’s service area.  However, in terms of the other public and community providers, coordination is encouraged but formal contracts or written agreements are not required.

199. Last column of Appendix 7 we are asked to describe written agreements with family planning agencies, Substance Abuse Coordinating Agencies, community and migrant health centers and programs.  Are Community Mental Health providers, Planned Parenthood, a Fiduciary contractual relationship with Child and Adolescent Health Centers, FQHC look-alikes, rural health clinics, and Indian health clinics and/or Asthma networks considered Public Community providers?  If so, what details are needed in the description?  Contract date, etc.?

The last column of Appendix 7 does not include contracts/agreements with CMHSPs/PIHPs, local health departments or Maternal and Infant Health Providers.  For written agreements or contracts with other public and community providers, please include the name of the agencies and the nature of the organization’s coordination (e.g. coordinating agreement, provider contract).  For coordinating agreements, provide a summary of the topics included in the agreement.  
200. Can agreements with Planned Parenthood Centers, FQHC look-alikes, rural health clinics, Indian health clinics and/or Asthma networks or a Fiduciary contractual relationship with Child and Adolescent Health Centers qualify as agreements with Public Community providers?

Yes.
201. Is the health plan’s Fiduciary contractual relationship sufficient to meet the requirement of having an agreement with Child and Adolescent Health Centers?

No.  The intent of Appendix 7 is for the Bidder to supply information regarding coordinating agreements and provider contracts with public and community agencies.

202. Should FQHCs be listed in the heading for the last column of Appendix 7?

Yes.
203. Will the State provide Bidders with the current listing of each of these provider types by County?

Public and community providers vary by county and by community.  The State does not want to limit the responses to specific providers or types of providers.

204. Health Plans are required to maintain care coordination agreements with Community Mental Health Agencies.  Do agreements with CMH providers qualify as agreements with “Substance Abuse Coordinating Agencies”?
Agreements with CMHSP providers qualify as agreements with “Substance Abuse Coordinating Agencies (SACA) ” only if the CMHSP provider is the same entity as the SACA and the coordinating agreement specifically includes coordination regarding substance use.
205. First column of Appendix 7 asks “Does Bidder have provider contract or written agreement with LHD in county?”  LHD is not a defined term, however, it is assumed to mean Local Health Department.  Should this say“…with local behavioral health and developmental disability providers”?  Per 1.022 (X), coordination agreements are required for local behavior health and developmental disability providers, however, this is not a requirement for local health departments.

In the first column of Appendix 7, Bidders should indicate whether they have a written agreement or provider contract with the Local Health Department in the county.  Appendix 7 does not include contracts/agreements with CMHSPs/PIHPs.
Appendix 10 
206. Appendix 10 appears to have Sanilac County and St. Clair County data reversed (shows Sanilac’s projected membership at 25,950 and St. Clair’s projected membership at 1,352).  Please clarify.

Appendix 10 contained an error for Sanilac, Schoolcraft, Shiawassee, St. Clair, and St. Joseph Counties.  A revised Appendix 10 is attached.
207. Please define the time frame and population supporting the projected enrollment presented in Appendix 10; specifically do the projections of Medicaid Enrollees include any program expansion in Medicaid or reflect the current eligibility standards and do the projections represent an increase in enrollees during the initial contract period of three years or another time frame?

Current enrollment in each county was multiplied by a factor intended to project population over the contract period.  If actual enrollment is greater than the projections, the State will allow service area expansions.

208. Do the eligible enrollee figures in Appendix 10 represent the number of beneficiaries who must enroll or do these figures also include the number beneficiaries who may enroll as well?
The State based the population projections on mandatory enrolled and mandatory unenrolled populations.
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